
ESTA Agenda   Page 1 of 3

ESTA BOARD AGENDA 
Regular Meeting 

Friday, November 18, 2022 at 9:00am 
City of Bishop Council Chambers 

301 West Line St, Bishop, California
The Agenda is available at www.estransit.com 

Chairperson: Bill Sauser Vice-Chairperson: Dan Totheroh 

Board Members: 
Kirk Stapp (Mammoth Lakes)      Jeff Griffiths (Inyo County) 
Karen Schwartz (Bishop)   Rhonda Duggan (Mono County) 
Jim Ellis (Bishop)   Bill Sauser (Mammoth Lakes) 
Dan Totheroh (Inyo County)    Bob Gardner (Mono County) 

Note:  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if an individual requires 
special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact Eastern Sierra Transit at 
(760) 872-1901 ext. 15 or 800-922-1930.  Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will
enable the Authority to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this
meeting. (28 CFR 13.102-35.104 ADA Title II)

Voice recorded public comment: To submit public comment via recorded message, please 
call 760-872-1901 ext. 12 by 4pm Thursday, November 17. State your name and the item 
number(s) on which you wish to speak. The recordings will be limited to two minutes. 
These comments may be shared at the appropriate time during the board meeting. 

Email public comment: To submit an emailed public comment to the Board please email 
pmoores@estransit.com by 4pm Thursday, November 17 and provide your name, the 
number(s) on which you wish to speak, and your comment. These comments will be shared 
with all attending Board members. 

HOW TO VIRTUALLY ATTEND THE ESTA BOARD MEETING: 
Listen to the meeting via phone by calling 669-900-9128 enter meeting code: 760-871-
1901#, if prompted, use password 753752. Join the ZOOM meeting on your computer or 
mobile device by using this link:  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/7608711901?pwd=VS9TeE4rU0NleWFCY0JTOVhzajEyQT09 

Remember, to eliminate feedback, use only one source of audio for the meeting, not 
both the phone and the computer. 

Begin Recording Meeting & Call to Order 

Roll Call 

http://www.estransit.com/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/7608711901?pwd=VS9TeE4rU0NleWFCY0JTOVhzajEyQT09


ESTA Agenda   Page 2 of 3

Pledge of Allegiance 

Public Comment*: The Board reserves this portion of the agenda for members of the 
public to address the Eastern Sierra Transit Authority Board on any items not on the 
agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Board. The Board will listen to all 
communication, but in compliance with the Brown Act, will not take any action on items 
that are not on the agenda. 

*Check meeting attendees. Read emails and/or phone calls submitted.

A. Consent Agenda (Board Action Required)

The following items are considered routine and non-controversial by staff and will be
approved by one motion if no member of the ESTA or public wishes an item removed.
If discussion is desired by anyone, the item will be removed from the consent agenda
and will be considered separately. Questions of clarification may be made by ESTA
Board members, without the removal of the item from the Consent Agenda.

A-1
A-2
A-3

Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes of October 14, 2022 
Van Purchase 
FY2022-23 Winter Service Review

B. Information Agenda (Receive and File Only)

The following items are presented as information only. Staff is prepared to answer
questions on these items, and may verbally emphasize points as necessary.
Otherwise, if no member of the public or Board wishes to open a discussion, the
Information Agenda will stand as presented, and the meeting will move to the next
section.

B-1 2023 ESTA Board Meeting Dates 
B-2 Financial Report for 2022/23 
B-3 Dial-a-Ride Fare Increase 

C. Action Agenda (Board Action Required)

C-1 2023 ESTA Board Elections 

D. Board Member Comments

E. Closed Session

E-1 DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION. Conference with Labor Negotiators.  
(Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6) – Authority designated 
representatives; Phil Moores, Dawn Vidal, and Christy Milovich.  Bargaining 
Group; ESTA-EEA 

E-2 Report on closed session as required by law. 



ESTA Agenda        Page 3 of 3 
 

F. Adjournment                                                                     
 

The next regularly scheduled meeting is December 9, 2022 at 11:00 am, in Bishop, CA. 
Check ESTA website for details on attending the meeting. 



Draft Minutes 10/14/2022 

Call to Order 

The meeting was called to order at 11:07 a.m. 

Roll Call 

Board Members Karen Schwartz, Rhonda Duggan, and Chair Bill Sauser attended the meeting in person, 

Board Members Jim Ellis, Jeff Griffiths, and Bob Gardner joined the meeting via videoconference. Board 

Members Kirk Stapp and Dan Totheroh were absent. 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Jim Warda Led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Consent Agenda 

It was moved by Board Member Rhonda Duggan, seconded by Board Member Karen Schwartz, with 

Board Members Kirk Stapp and Dan Totheroh absent and carried by a 6-0 roll call vote to approve the 

Consent Agenda as presented. 

Information Agenda 

B-1 Executive Director Phil Moores announced that Joe Warda had been awarded the ESTA Employee of 

the Quarter. There was discussion between Mr. Moores, Mr. Warda and members of the Board. 

B-2 Executive Director Phil Moores outlined the information in the 2021/22 Financial Report.  Chair Bill 

Sauser suggested that moving forward the Financial Reports be added to the Consent Agenda. There 

was discussion between Mr. Moores and members of the Board. 

B-3 Executive Director Phil Moores presented the Financial Report for 2022/23 (There was no 

discussion.) 

B-4 Executive Director Phil Moores outlined the information in the staff report. There was discussion 

between Mr. Moores and members of the Board. 

B-5 Executive Director Phil Moores outlined the information in the staff report. There was discussion 

between Mr. Moores and members of the Board. 

Action Agenda 

C-1 Executive Director Phil Moores outlined the information in the staff report. There was discussion 

between Mr. Moores and members of the Board. 

It was moved by Board Member Jeff Griffiths, seconded by Board Member Karen Schwartz, with Board 

Members Kirk Stapp and Dan Totheroh absent and carried by a 6-0 roll call vote to approve Job Sharing 

Program as presented. 

November 18, 2022
Agenda Item A-1

A-1-1



Board Member Comments 

Board Member Bob Gardner announced that there was a Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System 

(YARTS) meeting on Monday and invited Executive Director Phil Moores to attend. 

There was discussion between Mr. Moores and members of the Board. 

Closed Session 

The Board went into closed session at 11:29 a.m. 

The Board returned from closed session at 11:52 a.m. 

 Chair Bill Sauser reported that there was no reportable action was taken in closed session 

Adjournment 

The meeting was adjourned at 11:52 a.m. to the next regular meeting scheduled to be held on 

November 18, 2022 in Bishop. 

November 18, 2022
Agenda Item A-1

A-1-2



November 18, 2022 
Agenda Item A-2 

A-2-1 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

Subject:   Approval of Van Purchases  
 
Initiated by: Phil Moores, Executive Director 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Poor availability of vehicles has made executing grant awards difficult. We 
have six large cutaways, a trolley, and two small cutaways left to receive on 
previous grant awards. Meanwhile, the Bishop dial-a-ride fleet is broken in 
many ways. Older vehicles need parts and have a high maintenance cost and 
fuel cost. 
 
ANALYSIS/DISCUSSION: 
 
To address the challenge, purchasing smaller vehicles that are currently 
available will both provide a working fleet and cost less to do it. They will all 
be ADA accessible. Once the vans are received, the older small cutaways will 
be sold or gifted. 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
The purchase of these vans will be funded with Inyo and Mono Capital 
Restricted STA and/or with funds from ESTA’s Capital Replacement Account. 
There are sufficient funds to make the purchase. The per unit price is 
$74,968.28. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Board is requested to approve the purchase of five Dodge Braun Vans 
from Creative Bus Sales, in the amount not to exceed $400,000 funded with 
Inyo and Mono Capital Restricted STA funds and/or with funds from ESTA’s 
capital replacement account. 
 



Mike Farr
Transit Bus Sales 
Creative Bus Sales 
11/10/22



November 18, 2022 
Agenda Item A-3 

STAFF REPORT 

Subject:   2022-23 Winter Service Recommendations 
Presented by: Phil Moores, Executive Director 

BACKGROUND: 
ESTA’s Service Change Policy includes a plan for bi-annual service planning 
sessions to allow the Board an opportunity to review and approve the services 
proposed to be operated for the coming six months.  

ANALYSIS/DISCUSSION: 
The following pages detail the specific routes that are planned to be operated 
by Eastern Sierra Transit for what is considered the winter season 2022-23.  
Table 1 provides descriptions of the routes.  All services approved for 
operation in FY21-22 are proposed to continue in FY22-23. 

Table 1 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
The transit service detailed on the preceding pages are included in the ESTA 
FY 2022/23 budget and are consistent with the revenues included in the 
budget.  The revenues and expenses for the routes that are approved to 
operate beyond June 30, 2023 will be included in the FY 2023/24 budget. 

RECOMMENDATION 
The Board is requested to approve the Eastern Sierra Transit services planned 
to be operated through April 2023. 

A-3-1

Route Type Hours Service Period Description
S M T W T F S

Walker DAR DAR X X X X X 8am-4:30pm year-round 1 bus, expand to Bridgeport 1 days
Bridgeport - Carson LL X 11am-6:30pm year-round 1 roundtrip on Wednesday
Walker to Mammoth LL X X X X X 8am-5pm Tuesdays Operated by Walker DAR driver. Res. Only
Mammoth DAR Par X X X X X 8am-5pm year-round Provides ADA paratransit backup
Purple Line Cor X X X X X X X 7am-6pm year-round 1 bus with 30-minute headways
Mammoth Winter Trolley Cor X X X X X X X 5:40p-2am Through April 21 2 buses with 30-minutes service till 2am
Mammoth Shoulder 
Season Trolley Cor X X X X X X X 7am-10pm

mid-April to mid-June 
Labor Day till Nov. 2 buses with 30-minutes service till 2am

Red Line Cor X X X X X X X 7am-5:30pm Thru April
3 buses with 20-minute service     
As many as 6 buses on busy days

Blue Line Cor X X X X X X X 7am-5:20pm Thru April 1 bus with 15-minute service
Green Line Cor X X X X X X X 7:30am-5:30pm Thru April 1 bus with 15-minute service
Yellow Line Cor X X X X X X X 7:30am-5:30pm Thru April 1 bus with 20-minute service
Mammoth Express Com X X X X X see schedule year-round 8 trips daily
395 Reno Cor X X X X X see schedule year-round 1 roundtrip daily
395 Lancaster Cor X X X X X see schedule year-round 1 roundtrip daily

Benton - Bishop LL X X
8:30am leave 
2:30pm return year-round 1 roundtrip daily, 2 days per week

Bishop DAR DAR X X X X X X X

7am-6:30pm (M-F)  
8:30am-6pm (Sat)  

8am-1pm (Sun) year-round Door-to-door service in Bishop

Nite Rider DAR X X 6pm-2am year-round
Friday and Saturday nights (and New 
Years Eve & Tri-county Fair Sunday)

Lone Pine - Bishop Com X X X X X see schedule year-round 6 trips daily
Lone Pine DAR DAR X X X X X 7:30am-3:30pm year-round 1 bus - door-to-door service

Days of Week



November 18, 2022 
Agenda Item B-1 

 

B-1-1 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

Subject:  2023 Board Meeting Calendar 

Presented By: Phil Moores, Executive Director 

Background: 
Section 1.5 of the Joint Powers Agreement provides that the Board of Directors 
shall provide for at least one regular meeting each month. 
 
Analysis/Discussion: 
The Board has historically met on the second Friday of each month, alternating the 
meetings between Bishop and Mammoth two at a time. Virtual meetings will likely 
continue for a while. Both the ESCOG and League of Cities calendars were 
consulted. The California League of Cities conference is scheduled for September 
20-22, 2023, in Sacramento. Anticipated ESCOG meeting dates are indicated in 
bold. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
None 
 
Recommendation: 
It is recommended the Board approve a schedule of dates for the regular meetings 
of the Board for 2023.  
 
 
January 13 in Bishop, 9am   July 14 Bishop, 9am 
 
February 10 in Mammoth, 11am  August 11 in Bishop, 11am 
 
March 10 in Bishop, 9am    September 8 in Mammoth, 11am 
 
April 14 in Bishop, 11am   October 13 in Mammoth, 11am 
 
May 12 in Mammoth, 9am   November 17 in Bishop, 9am 
 
June 9 in Mammoth, 11am   December 8 in Bishop, 11am 
 





November 18, 2022
Agenda Item B-2

B-2-2



November 18, 2022
Agenda Item B-2

B-2-3



November 18, 2022
Agenda Item B-2

B-2-4



November 18, 2022
Agenda Item B-2

B-2-5



November 18, 2022
Agenda Item B-2

B-2-6



November 18, 2022
Agenda Item B-2

B-2-7



  November 18, 2022 
  Agenda Item B-3 
 

B-3-1 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

Subject:   ESTA Dial-a-Ride Fare Change 
Presented by: Phil Moores, Executive Director 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Dial-a-Ride (DAR) service operated by ESTA have not had a fare increase 
since 2011. Recent operational cost increases make it necessary to consider 
a fare change across all DAR services. This includes the Lone Pine, Bishop, 
Mammoth Lakes, and Walker locations. 
 
When this subject was originally introduced, the additional revenue was to 
help pay for a $30,000 annual software license to implement a microtransit 
style app to Bishop DAR. However, recent labor negotiations make the 
purchase imprudent at this time. Now the funds are needed to help cover 
increasing expenses. 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
Dial-A-Ride Fares 
 
Current 

Fare Categories Adult     Discount 
Zone 1 (In town) $3     $2.40 
Zone 2 (Outside of town)* $4.20     $3.60 
Night Rider (6pm – 2am Fri and Sat nights) $4.20     $3.60 
 
Proposed 

Fare Categories Adult     Discount 
Zone 1 (In town) $4     $3 
Zone 2 (Outside of town)* $5     $4 
Night Rider (6pm – 2am Fri and Sat nights) $5     $4 
 
The expected revenue from the recommended fare change is approximately 
$30,000 annually. The ESTA DAR carries around 40,000 passengers each 
year. 
 
The public hearing will coincide with the January 13th, 2023 Board meeting. 
Once the public hearing portion of the meeting is complete, the Board may 
vote on the item. 
 
This item is information only. 



November 18, 2022 
Agenda Item C-1 

 

C-1-1 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

Subject:  Election of 2023 Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson 

Presented By: Phil Moores, Executive Director 

 

Background:  

Section 2.1 of the Joint Powers Agreement provides that the Board of Directors shall 
elect a Chair and Vice-Chair from among its members. The ESTA By-Laws specify 
that the representative elected to the Chair position shall alternate between Inyo and 
Mono Counties each year, and that the persons elected to the Chair and Vice-Chair 
positions shall not be from the same county. 

Analysis/Discussion:  

In keeping with the provisions outlined in the ESTA By-Laws, the Chair for the 2023 
year should be from Bishop or Inyo County. Past practice has been that the Vice-
Chair has been elected to the position of Chair in the year following their term as 
Vice-Chair. Director Totheroh from the Inyo County was elected to the position of 
Vice-Chair last year. Unfortunately, Director Totheroh will not be on the ESTA Board 
after December 2022. Also, in keeping with the By-Laws, the Vice-Chair for 2023 
should be from either Mono County or the Mammoth Lakes. 

Recommendation: 

It is recommended the Board elect a Chairperson and Vice Chairperson for 2023. 


	A-2 Van Purchase.pdf
	A-2 Van Purchases
	A-2 Quote signed




